
 
 
 
 

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Join on Zoom: https://www.zoom.us/j/87972683373 

Webinar ID: 879 7268 3373 
 

Wednesday, February 10, 2021 
 
Until further notice the Marin County Transit District meetings will not be providing an in-
person meeting location for the public to attend. Members of the Board of Directors and 
staff may participate in this meeting electronically or via teleconference. Members of the 
public are encouraged to participate remotely as described below. 
 
How to watch the meeting: 
 
Zoom:   To join Webinar visit https://www.zoom.us/j/87972683373  
 
Webinar ID:  879 7268 3373 

 
Teleconference: Members of the public wishing to participate via teleconference, can 

do so by dialing in to the following number at 3:30 P.M.  
February 10, 2021: +1 669 900 6833; Access Code: 879 7268 
3373.  

 
How to provide comment on agenda items: 
 
•  To provide written public comment prior to or during the meeting, please email  

info@marintransit.org (if intended to be read aloud as public comment, please 
state “Public Comment” in subject line). Please email your comments no later than 
3:30 P.M. Wednesday, February 10, 2021 to facilitate timely distribution to 
the Board of Directors. Please include the agenda item number you are addressing 
and include your name and address. Your comments will be forwarded to the 
Board of Directors and will be placed into the public record. 
 

•  During the meeting (only): Use the comment form available at  
https://www.marintransit.org/meetings to submit your meeting-related 
comments on this agenda. Your comments will become part of the public record. 

 
•  During the meeting (only): Ensure that you are in a quiet environment with 

no background noise (traffic, children, pets, etc.) To raise your hand on 
Zoom press *9 and wait to be called upon by the President or the Clerk to 
speak. You will be notified that your device has been unmuted when it is 
your turn to speak. You will be warned prior to your allotted time being 
over. Your comments will also become part of the public record. 
 

 
 

 
 
 

https://www.zoom.us/j/87972683373
https://www.zoom.us/j/87972683373
mailto:info@marintransit.org
https://www.marintransit.org/meetings


2 
 

 
 
 

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Join on Zoom: https://www.zoom.us/j/87972683373 

Webinar ID: 879 7268 3373 
 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
 

Wednesday, February 10, 2021  
 

 
4:00 p.m.   Convene as the Marin County Transit District Board of Directors  

 
1. Open Time for Public Expression (limited to three minutes 
 speaker on items not on the Transit District’s agenda) 
 
2. Board of Directors’ Matters 
 
Convene in Closed Session 
 
CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS  
California Government Code section 54956.8.  
Real Property Address: 3000 Kerner Blvd, San Rafael, CA  
Agency Negotiators: Brian Case, Deputy County Counsel, Marin County; 
Deborah Miller, Partner, Shute, Mihaly and Weinberger; Nancy Whelan, 
General Manager, Marin Transit  
Negotiating Party: Jason and Irene Strahm, co-trustees of the Jason R. 
Strahm and Irene W.P. Strahm Revocable Trust  
Under Negotiation: Price and terms of payment 
 
Report from Closed Session 
 
3. Purchase of Property at 3000 Kerner Blvd, San Rafael for $3.25 

million and associated activities 
Recommended Action: Approve the purchase of property at 
3000 Kerner Blvd, San Rafael for $3.25 million and 
associated activities; authorize spending for due diligence, 
closing, and related costs; determine that the acquisition 
and use of the property is exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and adopt two FY20-21 
budget amendments in the amounts of $3.9 million and 
$1.1 million, respectively, each funded with the District’s 
Capital Reserves. 

 
Adjourn  

https://www.zoom.us/j/87972683373


3 

All Marin Transit public meetings are conducted in accessible locations.  Copies of 
documents are available in accessible formats upon request.  If you require Translation 
Assistance, American Sign Language Interpreters, Assistive Listening Devices or other 
accommodations to participate in this meeting, you may request them by calling (415) 

226-0855 (voice) or contact the California Relay Service by dialing 711 to connect to the
telephone listed above.  Requests must be received no less than five working days
prior to the meeting to help ensure availability.  For additional information, visit our

website at http://www.marintransit.org 

Late agenda material can be inspected in the office of Marin Transit, between 
the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday. The office is 

located at 711 Grand Avenue, Suite 110, San Rafael, CA 94901. 

Todas las reuniones públicas de Marin Transit se llevan a cabo en lugares accesibles.  
Están disponibles copias de los documentos en formatos accesibles, a solicitud.  Si usted 

requiere ayuda con la traducción, intérpretes de Lenguaje Americano de Señas, 
dispositivos de ayuda auditiva, u otras adaptaciones para participar en esta reunión, 
puede solicitarlas llamando al (415) 226-0855 (voz) o comunicarse con el Servicio 

California Relay marcando al 711 para conectarse al número de teléfono mencionado.  
Las solicitudes deben recibirse a más tardar cinco días laborables antes de la 

reunión para ayudar a asegurar la disponibilidad. Para obtener información 
adicional, visite nuestro sitio web en http://www.marintransit.org 

Material de agenda de última hora puede ser inspeccionado en la oficina de 
Marin Transit, entre las horas de 8:00 am y 5:00 pm.  La oficina está ubicada en 

711 Grand Avenue, Suite 110, San Rafael, CA 94901. 

http://www.marintransit.org/
http://www.marintransit.org/


kate colin
president
city of san rafael

dennis rodoni

supervisor district 4
director

brian colbert

town of san anselmo
alternate

eric lucan

city of novato
director

stephanie moulton-peters
2nd vice president
supervisor district 3

judy arnold
vice president
supervisor district 5

katie rice

supervisor district 2
director

damon connolly
director
supervisor district 1

711 grand ave,#110
san rafael,ca94901

ph: 415.226.0855
fax: 415.226.0856
marintransit.org

February 10, 2021 

Honorable Board of Directors 
Marin County Transit District 
3501 Civic Center Drive 
San Rafael, CA  94903 

SUBJECT: Approve the purchase of property at 3000 Kerner 
Blvd, San Rafael for $3.25 million and associated activities; 
authorize spending for due diligence, closing, and related costs; 
determine that the acquisition and use of the property is exempt 
from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and adopt 
two FY20-21 budget amendments in the amounts of $3.625 
million and $1.1 million, respectively, each funded with the 
District’s Capital Reserves. 

Dear Board Members: 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve a Purchase and Sale Agreement to 
acquire the property located at 3000 Kerner Blvd, San Rafael, 
California for $3.25 million; approve execution of all documents and 
performance of all activities consistent with the terms of the Purchase 
and Sale Agreement, including delegation of authority to the General 
Manager to approve/accept information received during due diligence; 
authorize expenditures for due diligence, closing, and related costs 
not to exceed $375,000; determine that the proposed acquisition and 
use of the site is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15301 (Class 1); and 
adopt two FY2020/21 budget amendments in the amounts of $3.625 
million  (BA# 2021-06) and $1.1 million (BA#2021-07), respectively, 
each funded with the District’s Capital Reserves.  

SUMMARY: The District currently owns a fleet of 100 buses and 
paratransit vehicles operated and maintained through contracts with 
four vendors. The operations and maintenance of the District’s fleet 
has historically been performed through a county-wide network of 
several storage and maintenance facilities owned or leased by 
contractors. The District has identified the value of investing in 
permanent, District-controlled facilities to incentivize competition for 
service operations contracts, reduce cost uncertainty, and reduce or 
minimize overall operating cost growth. In 2015, your Board 
authorized the General Manager to identify and begin negotiating 
terms to purchase or lease of sites for maintenance and operations 
facilities. 

Item 3

1



2 

In January 2020, the District acquired 600 Rush Landing in Novato primarily for use as a bus 
storage facility. The site is not optimal for maintenance purposes, however, so the District has 
continued searching for an appropriate maintenance site.   
 
Following an extensive search, staff has identified the property located at 3000 Kerner Blvd, 
San Rafael, CA (APN 009-121-14 and 009-131-01) (the “Property”) for a District-owned bus 
maintenance facility. Staff recommends that your Board approve the purchase of the Property 
pursuant to the attached Purchase and Sale Agreement for $3.25 million, and approve the 
execution of all documents and performance of all activities consistent with the terms of the 
Purchase and Sale Agreement, including delegation of authority to the General Manager to 
approve/accept information received during due diligence. Staff recommends that your Board 
authorize expenditures for due diligence, closing, and related costs in an amount not to exceed 
$375,000 for items such as appraisal, land surveying, and title insurance premium. Staff 
recommends that your Board determine that the proposed acquisition of this Property and 
continued use under the existing leases is exempt from CEQA under CEQA Guidelines section 
15301 (Class 1). Staff recommends that your Board adopt two FY2020/21 budget amendments 
in the amounts of $3.625 million and $1.1 million, respectively, each funded with the District’s 
Capital Reserves, to accomplish the acquisition and improvements to the site. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
Purpose and Need for Property Acquisition 
The District currently owns a fleet of 100 buses and paratransit vehicles operated and 
maintained through contracts with four vendors. The operations and maintenance of the 
District’s fleet has historically been performed through a county-wide network of several storage 
and maintenance facilities owned or leased by contractors. The District has been able to 
operate and expand services with these dispersed facilities, but the District has identified the 
value of investing in permanent facilities as the District transitions to hybrid electric and battery 
electric buses. Purchasing a facility has been a priority project for the District to incentivize 
competition for service operations contracts, reduce cost uncertainty, and reduce or minimize 
overall operating cost growth. District ownership of a facility will impact procurements and 
operations for the Local Fixed Route, Muir Woods Shuttle, West Marin Stagecoach, Community 
Shuttle, and paratransit operations. District owned facilities will enable the District to better plan 
for service growth and effectively deploy, maintain, and integrate new vehicle technologies.   
 
In June 2015, your Board authorized the General Manager to identify and begin negotiating 
terms to purchase or lease sites for maintenance and operations facilities. In October 2016 your 
Board established goals and criteria for evaluating potential bus maintenance and operations 
facility sites. Attachment A, Initial Evaluation Criteria for Siting a Marin Transit Bus Maintenance 
and Operations Facility, describes these selection criteria. At a minimum, the site had to be at 
least 3 acres for a single site or combination of two sites, consistent with the local jurisdiction’s 
General Plan, and the purchase and development needed to be financially feasible and cost 
effective. Other adopted criteria included: 
 

1. Within Marin County to minimize deadhead or non-revenue service costs 
2. Accessible to US 101 
3. Compatible land use / good neighbor potential 
4. Sufficient size and accessibility to maneuver and store buses 
5. Primary egress and ingress routes to site are compatible with local circulation plan 
6. Site readiness 
7. Minimal vulnerability in case of a natural disaster 

Item 3

2



3 

8. Title VI Equity Analysis  
9. Preliminary Analysis of Potential Environmental Impacts on Site Surroundings 

 
With the assistance of a commercial real estate broker, staff explored over fifty-five sites for a 
property that met both our fleet and facility needs as well as the selection criteria. Properties 
meeting the District’s needs are quite limited. 
 
In January 2020, the District acquired 600 Rush Landing in Novato primarily for use as a bus 
storage facility. As staff noted at the time of the acquisition, the site meets only a portion of the 
fleet parking needs, so the District has continued searching for additional parking and 
maintenance sites. The focus of the current search has been on an appropriate site for vehicle 
maintenance.  
 
Description of the Property 
Following an extensive search, staff has identified the property located at 3000 Kerner Blvd, 
San Rafael, CA (APN 009-121-14 and 009-131-01) (the “Property”) for a District-owned bus 
maintenance facility.  
 
The Property is an about 0.31 acre site. The Property is bounded Kerner Boulevard to the west, 
a vacant tidal wetlands to the east, and privately owned property to the north and south. 
Attachment B is a site map. The Property is located within San Rafael’s Light Industrial/Office 
(LI/O) zoning district and is similarly designated by San Rafael for light industrial/office use per 
General Plan 2020. Uses in the immediate vicinity of the Property include commercial and non-
profit offices, a UPS sorting facility, and an industrial supply company. 
 
The Property is improved with an approximately 10,000 square foot, one-story warehouse/office 
building built in 1978. Approximately 3,000 square feet is currently used as an office, while 
approximately 7,000 square feet is used as a warehouse. The warehouse portion has 3 roll-up 
doors. The site has limited parking for up to four paratransit vans and 15 automobiles. 
 
The Property is owned by John R Strahm and Irene W.P. Strahm Revocable Living Trust. The 
seller currently leases the property to a commercial printing business under a month-to-month 
lease. In December 2020, the seller listed the property on the market for lease and was 
soliciting a new tenant/lessee at the time the District made its offer to purchase the Property.  
 
The District’s Planned Use 
The District anticipates acquiring the Property and using it in its existing, improved condition for 
vehicle maintenance activities, including automatic brake adjustment verification; inspection of 
safety components; inspection of other systems and components; lubrication; replacement of 
brake pads, pack wheel bearings, and similar; transmission service; and bus washing and 
interior cleaning. The building may also be used for maintenance administration, parts inventory, 
paratransit scheduling and dispatch, travel navigator offices, and employee breakroom. The site 
is not anticipated to be used for major vehicle repairs (such as transmission replacements, 
component rebuilds, paint and body work, or upholstery work); fueling; or bus parking/storage. 
 
No significant improvements are anticipated to be required at the site. Planned improvements 
are intended to enhance the property’s functionality and safety. Interior improvements may 
include improved accessibility, removal of drop ceilings, installation of vehicle lifts, safety 
enhancements, and minor electrical alterations. Planned exterior modifications may include 
safety lighting, perimeter fencing, and front gate. Other potential improvements may include 

Item 3

3



4 

installation of additional roll-up doors to enhance access options, and a landscape irrigation 
system. 
 
Operating and maintenance costs will be verified during the due diligence period. District staff 
will evaluate options for managing the property including hiring a management company, using 
currently contracted suppliers, or using existing staff. 
 
The acquisition of this Property, when combined with the previously acquired 600 Rush Landing 
site, fulfills much of the Board’s evaluation criteria. Acquiring the Property is expected to attract 
new bids for contract operations, and allow for more competition in service procurements 
making it valuable to the District’s operations.  
 
Key Terms and Conditions of Acquisition 
Staff has negotiated with the property owner on a voluntary basis to acquire an unencumbered 
fee simple interest in the Property. The negotiated form of Purchase and Sale Agreement is 
attached as Attachment C. The seller has executed the agreement. Some of the key terms and 
conditions of the acquisition include: 
 
Price:  The purchase price is $3.25 million. The District will complete an appraisal during the 
due diligence period to confirm the appropriateness of the negotiated price. 
 
Occupancy:  As described above, the Property is currently leased on a month-to-month basis. 
The seller was actively seeking a new tenant at the time the District made its offer to purchase. 
At the close of the due diligence period, the seller/landlord will exercise its right to give the 
tenant a notice of termination. The District will acquire an unencumbered interest in the Property 
and the Property will be vacant at closing. 
 
As-Is Purchase; Release of Claims:  The District would acquire the property in its “as-is” 
condition and generally release seller from claims related to the condition of the Property. 
During the due diligence period, staff intends to, among other things, engage a consultant to 
perform a “Phase I” environmental assessment and, if warranted, further investigations. 
 
Due Diligence Period:  The District would have a 60-day period to conduct and complete a due 
diligence review, including such matters as title condition; lease status; appraisal; physical, 
structural, and environmental condition; land use, zoning, and entitlement status; and suitability 
of the Property for the District’s intended purpose. Should the District identify material concerns 
with the Property, it may terminate the Agreement and receive a refund of its deposit during this 
due diligence period. Staff recommends authorizing the General Manager to approve/accept 
information received during due diligence and proceed with the closing of the purchase of the 
Property in the event that she determines in her reasonable discretion that such information 
does not materially affect the District’s interests, is consistent with the District’s expectations 
under the Purchase and Sale Agreement, and/or is otherwise commercially reasonable to 
accept. 
 
Title Matters:  The District has received a preliminary title report for the Property indicating a 
limited number of items/exceptions pertaining to the Property. Staff is not aware that any of the 
items will materially effect the value or use of the Property for the District’s intended purpose, 
but that assessment is subject to confirmation during the due diligence period. Staff intends to 
retain a surveyor to assist in this process. 
 

Item 3

4



5 

Deposit:  The District would make an initial $100,000 deposit upon opening escrow and an 
additional $150,000 deposit at the end of the due diligence period ($250,000 total), which would 
be applied toward the purchase price at closing. If the District terminates the agreement during 
the due diligence period, the full amount of the deposit would be refunded to the District. After 
the close of the due diligence period, the deposit would only be refunded to the District in limited 
circumstances (such as breach by the seller).  
 
Schedule:  If your Board approves a Purchase and Sale Agreement to acquire the Property, 
escrow would open and the 60-day due diligence period would begin promptly. The closing 
would occur on the earlier of 95 days or 5 days after the tenant has vacated (but not before 
completion of due diligence). Staff expects closing to occur by no later than July 15, 2021.   
 
Other Matters for Consideration 
 
San Rafael Report on Conformity with General Plan: California Government Code Section 
65402(c) requires that whenever a governmental entity intends to acquire property within the 
jurisdiction of another city, the local planning agency of that city must have an opportunity to 
report on whether the location, purpose, and extent of the proposed acquisition conforms with 
city’s adopted general plan. District staff requested a report from the City of San Rafael 
regarding the conformity of the District’s proposed acquisition of the Property with San Rafael’s 
general plan. On February 5, 2021 the San Rafael Community Development Director issued a 
letter reporting to the District that the acquisition and use is consistent with the San Rafael 
General Plan 2020.  
 
Title VI Equity Analysis: The District is required to conduct a Title VI equity analysis to ensure 
the location identified for purchase is selected without regard to race, color, or national origin. 
No engine or bodywork will be performed at the site.   
  
After considering all potential Title VI-related impacts, staff determined that there are no equity 
impacts associated with acquisition of the Property. The District’s purchase of the Property will 
not change the intensity of use of the Property and will be consistent with the existing light 
industrial and commercial activities on site, and those same uses at adjacent properties.   
 
An inspection of the Property disclosed that the site is on the east side of Kerner Blvd. To the 
west of Kerner Blvd. is E. Francisco Blvd, a freeway frontage road immediately adjacent to and 
parallel with Highway 101. The east side of the Property consists of vacant land/wetlands. The 
developed properties in this area are primarily used for light industrial operations. The proposed 
purchase will not disrupt any community activities or community uses such as community 
centers, parks, and churches. There are no residences located within a half mile from the 
Property on either side of Kerner Blvd, and there are no visual or noise impacts to residential 
properties. No displacement of residential or commercial properties is required.   
  
The property immediately to the south at 2980 Kerner Blvd was formerly used for manufacturing 
and industrial equipment and supplies and a portion of the building is currently rented to Silk 
Road Teas. A Ross Valley Sanitary District facility is located on the other side of that building, at 
2960 Kerner Blvd. Immediately to the north is an animal protection organization at 3010 Kerner 
Blvd. The building at 3020 Kerner houses an insurance agency and Integrated Community 
Services (ICS). ICS is a non-profit organization for people with disabilities to assist with careers, 
housing and life skills. A youth gymnastics academy is located to further north at 3030 Kerner 
Blvd. Immediately across from the Property there is a major UPS shipping and distribution 
facility at 2985 Kerner Blvd. Other nearby uses include an electrical supply store, car rental, 

Item 3

5



6 

auto repair, bathroom supply, signage shop, U-Haul, fast food businesses, and warehouses.  
The Property is accessed directly via Kerner Blvd from the north and south.  
  
While not currently anticipated, should the District propose a change in use in the future, the 
District will conduct all appropriate public noticing, outreach, and Title VI analysis. 
 
No Displacement; Relocation Benefits: Staff has determined that because the District is 
acquiring the Property through a voluntary sale, and because the tenant occupies on a month-
to-month basis and the seller was actively soliciting a new tenant for the site at the time the 
District made its offer to purchase, the seller and tenant will not be displaced persons in 
connection with the proposed purchase of the Property and, as such, will not be eligible for 
relocation assistance under state law. 
 
Environmental Review  
 
Based on a review of the facts and circumstances of the Property and this transaction, staff 
determined that the acquisition and use of the Property is exempt from CEQA pursuant to 14 
Cal. Code Regs. (“CEQA Guidelines”) section 15301 (Class 1). Section 15301 exempts projects 
that “consist[] of the operation, repair, maintenance, permitting, leasing, licensing, or minor 
alteration of existing public or private structures, facilities, mechanical equipment, or 
topographical features, involving negligible or no expansion of existing or former use beyond 
that existing at the time of lead agencies determination.” Here, as described above, the District 
has no plans to materially alter the Property, and the District plans to continue the existing light 
industrial use of the Property with minor alterations to the interior and exterior. Under certain 
circumstances outlined in CEQA Guidelines section 15300.2, a project that otherwise qualifies 
for an exemption will not be exempt from CEQA. None of the circumstances outlined in CEQA 
Guidelines section 15300.2 apply to District’s proposed acquisition and use of the Property.       
 
FISCAL/STAFFING IMPACT:  
 
These board actions approve the expenditure of $3.25 million for the purchase of the Property 
and $375,000 for expenditures related to the acquisition such as due diligence, closing, and 
related costs (e.g., building inspection, title insurance premium, escrow and recording fees).  
 
To accomplish the acquisition and in anticipation of the planned improvements to the site, staff 
recommend that the Board adopt two FY20-21 budget amendments: 

- 2021-06 would add project Maintenance Facility Purchase (FA) with budget of $3.625 
million funded with the District’s Capital Reserves.    

- 2021-07 would add project Maintenance Facility Improvements (FD) with a budget of 
$1.1 million funded with the District’s Capital Reserves.   

 
The District currently has a Capital Reserve of $15.2 million funded with unspent prior year 
property tax funding. Adoption of budget amendments 2021-06 and 2021-07 program the 
expenditure of $4.725 million of the District reserves. Based on current year estimated actuals, 
the District may have approximately $1.0 million in current year property tax funds and Measure 
AA capital funds that can be transferred to these projects and reduce the expenditure of 
reserves.   
 

Item 3

6



7 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Nancy Whelan 
General Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Attachment A - Initial Evaluation Criteria for Siting a Marin Transit Bus 

Maintenance and Operations Facility 
 

Attachment B - Site Map 
 

Attachment C - Purchase and Sale Agreement 

 

Item 3

7



Site Evaluation ‐ 3000 Kerner Blvd, San Rafael

A

  
Combined with  

property at  

Rush Landing

B   

C   

Peak period travel time to San Rafael Transit Center (SRTC) less than 12 

minutes and within 4 miles

Peak period travel time to SRTC between less than 25 minutes and 

within 8 miles

Peak period travel time to SRTC less than 40 minutes and within 12 

miles

Peak period travel time to SRTC more than 40 minutes or 12 miles

Within 1 minute from a US 101 on ramp

Within 5 minutes from a US 101 on ramp

Within 10 minutes from a US 101 on ramp

10+ minutes from a US 101 on ramp

Current zoning and use is same or similar to proposed bus 

maintenance and storage facility use 

Zoning is consistent with a bus maintenance and storage facility, or the 

site is eligible for a conditional use permit 

Accommodates 75 bus and shuttle vehicles

Accommodates 45 ‐ 75 bus and shuttle vehicles

Accommodates 30‐45 bus and shuttle vehicles

Accommodates less than 30 bus and shuttle vehicles

Primary access route is adjacent to or on frontage road of highway

Primary access route is on arterial

Primary access route is on local collector 

Developable within three years

Developable within five years

Developable within ten years

+1 * Extra point if site is partially available within 2 years

Multiple bus and shuttle vehicle access opportunities

Adequate vehicle access opportunities 

Single point of vehicle access

These requirements must be met. If they are not met, the site will be rejected.

Threshold Criteria

Minimum size for a single site or combination of two sites shall be at least 3 acres.

Land use shall be consistent with the General Plan.

Purchase and development of the site shall be financially feasible and cost effective.

Selection Criteria

1
Minimize deadhead or non‐revenue 

service costs

4
Sufficient size and accessibility to 

maneuver and store buses

Site is 

maneuverable & 

accomodates 

maintenance 

functions

2 Accessible to US 101

3
Compatible land use / good neighbor 

potential

5
Primary egress and ingress routes to site 

are compatible with local circulation plan

6 Site Readiness
+1

7
Minimal vulnerability in case of a natural 

disaster

(and other sites)

Item 3

8



Kerner Blvd

3000 Kerner

Site Map: 3000 Kerner Blvd

Item 3

9



CONFIDENTIAL REAL ESTATE NEGOTIATION 
 
 

1 
 

PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT 
(3000 Kerner Blvd, San Rafael, CA) 

 
This Purchase and Sale Agreement (“Agreement”), dated as of_______________, 2021 

(the “Effective Date”), is by and between the Jason R. Strahm and Irene W.P. Strahm Revocable 
Trust, dated March 3, 1993 (“Seller”), and Marin County Transit District, a transit district formed 
pursuant to California Public Utilities Code Sections 70000 et seq. (“Buyer”). Seller and Buyer 
may be individually referred to herein as a “Party” and collectively referred to herein as “Parties.” 

 
RECITALS 

  
A. Buyer is a transit district whose purpose is to develop, finance, organize, and 

provide local Marin County transit service in a manner consistent with an overall San Francisco 
Bay Area regional transit system. Buyer currently operates local fixed route, paratransit, and 
mobility management services under contracts with service providers. Buyer typically provides 
these contractors with the vehicles needed to operate the service and relies on the contractors to 
provide their own maintenance facilities. The existing contractor maintenance facilities are 
dispersed throughout the county. Buyer is interested in purchasing its own maintenance facility 
and consolidating maintenance of a portion of the existing fleet at that facility to increase 
competition for contracted services by expanding future procurement opportunities to include 
bidders who do not have access to maintenance facilities within the county, reduce long term risk, 
improve efficiency, and reduce operating costs. 

 
B. Seller is the owner of certain real property commonly known as 3000 Kerner Blvd., 

San Rafael, California, and more particularly described on Exhibit A attached to and incorporated 
into this Agreement.   

 
C. MCTD represents to Seller that no specific site or property needs to be acquired, 

the property to be acquired is not part of an intended, planned, or designated project area where all 
or substantially all of the property within the area is to be acquired within specific time limits, and 
MCTD will not acquire the property if negotiations fail to result in an amicable agreement; MCTD 
has informed Seller in writing of what MCTD believes to be the market value of the property. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Purchase and Sale Terms. 
 

a. Property Included in Sale.  Seller agrees to sell and convey to Buyer, and Buyer 
agrees to purchase from Seller, subject to the terms, covenants and conditions hereinafter set forth, 
the following: (i) the real property commonly known as 3000 Kerner Blvd, San Rafael, CA, 
identified as Assessor Parcel Numbers 009-121-14 and 009-131-01, which is described in detail 
on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (the “Real Property”); (ii) 
the one- (1-) story building located on the Real Property; (iii) any and all other improvements, 
structures, and fixtures to the Real Property, and all apparatus, equipment, and appliances used in 
connection with the operation or occupancy of the real property and its improvements (subsections 
(ii) and (iii) collectively, the “Improvements”); (iv) any and all rights, privileges, and easements 

Item 3

10



Item 3

11



Item 3

12



Item 3

13



Item 3

14



Item 3

15



Item 3

16



Item 3

17



Item 3

18



Item 3

19



Item 3

20



Item 3

21



Item 3

22



Item 3

23



Item 3

24



Item 3

25



Page 1 of 1

ORDER NO. : 0436027935

EXHIBIT A

The land referred to is situated in the County of Marin, City of San Rafael, State of California, 
and is described as follows:

Lots 25 and 26, as shown upon that certain map entitled, “Map of Bahia de Rafael Industrial
Park, San Rafael, California”, filed for record February 13, 1973 in Volume 15 of Maps, at Page 
54, Marin County Records.

APN:  009-131-01 & 009-121-14

Item 3

26



Item 3

27



Item 3

28



Item 3

29



Item 3

30



Item 3

31



Item 3

32



Marin Transit Board Meeting
Item 4

February 10, 2021

Item 3

33



Topics

• Review Property Needs
• 3000 Kerner Acquisition Overview
• Due Diligence Activities
• Next Steps

2Item 3

34



Current Facilities

3

648 Lindaro St (Marin Coordinating Council)

1011 Andersen Dr (GGT)

1301 Andersen Dr (Airporter) 15 Jordan St (Marin 
Coordinating Council

Item 3

35



Upcoming Bus Parking and Maintenance Needs

• Contracts for Marin Access Services expiring
• Contracts for fixed route services expire in 2 ½  years
• RFPs specify parking and maintenance facilities available

4

Potential Needs Parking/Other Maintenance

Paratransit 55 Shuttles 3 (min) smaller maintenance 
bays

Rural, Seasonal/MWS, 
Supplemental School

21 Buses 2 (min) maintenance bays

Local Shuttle and Fixed Route 
(not GGT operated)

31 Buses 3 (min) larger maintenance 
bays

All Employee parking 
Scheduling/dispatch office 
Driver/employee break room

Item 3

36



3000 Kerner Blvd, San Rafael

Property Summary

Owner John R Strahm and Irene W.P. Strahm 
Revocable Living Trust

Address 3000 Kerner Blvd, San Rafael

Size 0.31 Acres

Description Office space at the front of  the building, 
warehouse with 3 rollup doors

Building 10,000 SF (Office: 3,000 SF; Warehouse: 
7,000 SF)

Zoning Light Industrial/Office

Land Use 
Compatibility

Good

Price $3,250,000
5

Vacant – tidal 
wetlands

Privately 
Owned

Privately 
Owned

Item 3

37



3000 Kerner Blvd - Photos

6Item 3

38



3000 Kerner Blvd - Floor Plan

7

Rollup Door

Ro
llu

p 
Do

or
Ro

llu
p 

Do
or

Item 3

39



3000 Kerner Evaluation

8Item 3

40



3000 Kerner Evaluation - continued

9Item 3

41



Key Terms of Purchase and Sale Agreement

Purchase Price $3,250,000

Deposit $100,000 (3 business days after effective date)

Additional Deposit $150,000 (3 business days after due diligence)

Type of  Purchase Voluntary Sale

Due Diligence Period 60 days

Current Lease Seller to serve tenant with a notice to vacate at 
completion of  due diligence; tenant will have 
90 days to vacate.

Close Escrow Earlier of  95 days, or 5 days after tenant has 
vacated, but not before completion of  due 
diligence

10Item 3

42



Due Diligence

Appraisal
Title
Lease status
Physical, structural, environmental condition
Land use, zoning, entitlement
Compliance with laws, regulations, permits, and approvals
Compliance with CEQA

Staff  will return to the Board for further direction if  due diligence 
reveals any material, unexpected items.

11Item 3

43



Planned Improvements

• Enhancing functionality and safety
• Interior Improvements may include:

– Improved accessibility
– Removal of  drop ceiling
– Installation of  vehicle lifts
– Safety enhancements
– Minor electrical

• Exterior Improvements may include:
– Perimeter fencing
– Safety lighting

12Item 3

44



Project Expenses

Maintenance Facility Purchase

Property $3,250,000

Closing costs, legal fees,  due diligence $375,000

Total Expenditure, Budget Amendment 
2021-06

$3,625,000

Maintenance Facility Improvements

Design and Engineering $250,000

Construction $850,000

Total Expenditure, Budget Amendment 
2021-07

$1,100,000

13Item 3

45



Recommended Actions

• Approve the purchase of property at 3000 Kerner Blvd for $3.25 
Million and associated activities
– Authorize spending for due diligence, closing, and related costs

• Determine that the acquisition and use of the property is exempt 
from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to 
CEQA Guidelines section 15301 (Class 1)
– Light Industrial use will continue
– Property will not be materially altered

• Adopt two FY20-21 budget amendments each funded with District’s 
Capital Reserves
– $3.625 million for purchase and closing costs
– $1.1 million for site improvements

14Item 3

46



15

Questions
Nancy Whelan

General Manager

Item 3

47


	SPECIAL BOARD MEETING AGENDA



